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21 October 2005

Mr Cowley Grimmond

Principal Lawyar

Queensland Public Hospitals Commission of Inquiry
PO Box 13147

George Streat Qld 4008

Dear Mr Cowley-Grimmond

Thank you for your letter dated 14 October 2005 addressed to Hall Payne Solicitors,
which I recaived on 18 October 2005. '

T have attemptad to respond to the main aress I feel nesd further dehberation by the
Commission before maldng the general or adverse findings under consideration. I
believe some of the proposed findings sre untrue or the tegtimony on which they are
based is.misleading. It is possible to prepare a more detailed regponse, if the
Commission wishes me to, but ta da 56 I would need to seek an extension.

Alternatively, I feel these matvers are dealt with adequately in my testimony to the
Bundaberg Hoapital Commission of Inquiry on Day 45, 19 Aupust 2005, It may be
useful for the Commission to refer to this transcript,

The comments that I wish to make on the findings under consideration by the
Commission follow, and are numberad as per your letrer:

1(d)

1(9)

Patient 26 (F26) did show some signa of clinical improvement during his
hoapital stay in Bundaberg. To say that he showsd no significant signs of
clinical improvement is untrue. It would be more sppropriste to say he did

- niol show dramatic improvement, but certainly did show soms signa of

improvement prior to his detericration in his final time in Bundaberg. He
improved in terms of the colour of hia leg (lesa apparent ischemic tizsue), and
the swalling (reduced). Please rafer to my testimony at ppd584 - 4585,

The patient had a normal white cell count on 28 December, not one that had
“increased to an extent that it should have been clear to those caring for him
that he was geptic.”, His white cell count was 10 on 28 Dscember, 10 an 29
December, and rose to 17 on 30 December. A white cell count of 10 is within
normal limita. As detailed in my earlier testimony, it was two days later
that P26's white call count Tose to a level that indicated ke was posaibly
bacoming septic. When Dr Woodruff's testimony from the Bundaberg
Hoszpita] Commission of Inquiry is read I think it is clear he maant to say P26
was “clearly septic” on 30 December when he actually stated 28 December:



2(n)

2(b)

"..and ] would kike to draw the Commission's attention to the white cell count,
and you'll see that on the - around the 29th of December, it's remained
roughly normal from the 26th through to the 29th, but it's grossly abnormal
on the 30th, i¢'s risen from 10 to 18 and then goes on to 19 and & half on the
31st. And if one loaks algo at the nutrafills (sic) or the reactive white cells in
the bloodstream, they're becoming elevated on the 28th. So this patient is
becoming septic, clearly septic around the 28th, and should not have been
allowed to get into that state." :

Doy 42, 18 August 2005, p 4322

Obviougly, looking at this case retrospectively is quite different to
prospectively, aa I was forced to do. There was nothing in his clinical
presentation to suggest that he needed to be transferred to Brisbene, nor
were there clinical guidelines made available to me to suggest that this was
the case (i.e. any guidelines from Quesnsland Health, Medical Board, or the
Bundaberg Base Huospital), At the time, I didp't transfer the patient to
Brisbane earlier due to Dr Patel’s reassurance that the patient's injuries had
been fixed appropriately and that there was no reason for concern that he
may develop complications or not have undergona appropriate initial surgical
managemment. I tranaferred P26 to Brisbene when I discovered thia not be
the case (ie. when he clinically detericrated).

With regard to P26's urine pathology test of 23 December 2004, it is easy to
create soma particular significance of this test in hindsight, however I
maintain that thia should not be =o, and moreover reject that my action or
inection as a result of it iz of any particular relevance, as:

» I'was on holidaya at the time the urine analysis in guestion wsa
conducted and was not aware of its existence;

* Idonetthink it is reasonabls to suggest that it iz standard practice for a
doctor covering someone else's patients to read through every single
portion of the patients’ charta before providing advice or treatment to
them. Rather, it ie common to taks a briefing from his treating doctor, as |
did 50 in the case of Dr Patel with rezard to P26; and

* Inany case, had I reviewed the test I would have concluded that the
patient had muscle necrosis, which would hs expected after a period of
transient ischaemia to the leg. It is commonly used to assess the nead to
prevent renal failure (the muscle products clog up the kidneys and cause
acute renal failure). If the level ig high, measures to protect the kidneys
need to be instituted. Dr Patel had told me that ths patient initially had
renal failure, but that it had cleared with appropriate trestment. This
can be shown in his subsequent normal kidney function tests (blood tests).
It did not require ongoing monitoring since the kidney problem had
ceaged, The test, theorstically, could be used to measurs ongoing muscle
death, but I don't think this was why it had been ordered by Patel, merely
that it was used to judge the need for renal function monitoring. If one
thinks that thero is ongoinp tissue ischasmia (eg, from faulty vascular
Tepalr, as was the case here), the appropriate pathway is either to re-
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explora tha vascular repair or pexform imaping (ultrasound) to look at the
vasceular repair, not to follow the trend on this urige test.

2(c) Ibelieve the statement that I “failed ox 30 December 2004 to identify the
patient’s increaeing white blood cell count in his pathology test dated 30
December 2004 is untrue. I noticed P26's increasing white cell count oy 30
December 2004 and I considered potential sources of mfection and took
measures to resolve them. These measures included removing of the central
lotravenous line, taking urine and hlood cultures, and examining the wound.

These are the major areas I foel it necassary to comment on in the time available.

Yours sincarely

Gpomes "Dt 20

Dr James Gaffield





